

M
R. 105e.x
631
= Roerich Museum =
= Reports =
MINUTES of MEETINGS



VERNON
1148

180th meeting of Trustees

- 2) - Minutes of 179th meeting of the Trustees were read & approved
- 3) - Minutes No 42 from Trustees of Reich Museum from Vussat's Headquarters were read
- 6) - Minutes No 42 of Vussat Himalayan Research Institute from Vussat's Headquarters were read
- 4) - The following two telegrams were sent to His Excellency the Governor General and Mr. John F. Curry.
 - 5) - President's report of Aug 1972 was read & approved.
- 7) - Para. 6 Minutes 42, Vussat, Himalayan Institute, Vussat's Headquarters, Mr. Kerch Wides to state that the "extra expenses" which did not ask for, but were lawyer's fees.
- 8) - Miss S. J. Lightman read for Dr. de Perich's letter to her of July 20th

① Beginning of Minutes 180
 The Trustees wish to express their gratification at the Court's decision to appoint Mr. Kersch as visitor for they feel it will insure the protection of the cultural activities & interests of Bondholders.

- 10) Minutes N^o 43 of Rerich Museum from Moscow Headquarters were read
- 11) Minutes N^o 43 of Moscow Research Institute ~~were~~ from Moscow Headquarters were read. Re para 11 Minutes 42. We would appreciate receiving a few copies of the amount of paper to which Rerich could spare them. Likewise with "Rerich Day". If any books are needed in Moscow Headquarters we shall send any amount in disputed
- 12) Re para 2 ^{minutes 43} The trustees wish to state that ~~at~~ they keep in contact with the members of various committees ~~to~~ who are almost all away on their summer vacation.
- 13) Re para 4 ^{minutes 43} the amount for postage & cables for the months of April, May, June was omitted probably by oversight.
- 14) Mrs. Lichtman has heard

from Prof. Radolabovich that the article on "Spinoza" will appear in early fall in the ~~new~~ ^{new} ~~Harvard~~ ^{Harvard} Magazine. Two other articles by Prof. Rabinich will also be placed by Prof. Radol. in the two subsequent issues.

14) The book "Himalaya" was sent last week & Government's Monograph is being sent this week. We wish to say that the post-laws here forbid the sending of book post beyond 6 1/2 pounds, hence the books had to be sent parcel post.

15) All perhaps books & reproductions were all sent timely for the Congress Conference. We have received acknowledgements

28. ~~27~~

from the Kings that they are all on exhibition in a glass case. Esther Lichtmann read the letter received from Dr. Merrill of Aug. 10th in reference to ~~the~~ ^{selections} Dr. Vahl's botanical collections.

16) A letter from Prof. Rabinich to the president of the Yugoslavian Academy of Zagreb was read.

17) Prof. Rabinich's letter to Baron de Tambre of July 23rd was read.

18) Prof. Rabinich's letter to Dr. Chalmers of July 23rd was read.

19) Mr. Subzyard's letter of July 27th to H. H. Lichtmann was read.

20) The Trustees have approved of the financial statements of R. M. Mast. Just. & Trustat. to go to Albany.

21) Mr. Uroch announced that in order to promote the renting ~~season~~ of

the R. H. apartments to do some advertisement & publicity

22)

The attorney will apply to the judge for educational expenses which will amount to \$2,500 maximum monthly based upon the statements of real estate agents.

Miss Simpson
Miss Deary

Miss Grant will speak to the Pops Mrs. Harris about their friends to live in the building Mrs. Lichtman will speak to Mrs. Gerson, Mrs. Hoffat, Mrs. Satra

24)

Miss Grant reports that Mrs. Joseph Friend has accepted our invitation to help the League of Peace movement from New Orleans as President of Jewish Women the National Council of Jewish Women (50,000 members)

25)

~~We should appreciate Prof. Rosen's contribution whether the painting given to us is to go to the new building (the impetator) and under what conditions~~

25)

Mr. W. H. Lichtman suffering from an attack of hay fever had to leave for his yearly trip to Bethelton.

26)

It was decided to have the scholarship hearing of Master Institute on Sept. 24th

18th meeting

E

Aug. the 24th

105/6

- 1) Minutes of 18th meeting of Trustees were read.
- 2) No minutes from New York Headquarters were received this week in view of the ~~discrepancy~~ with Mr. Shibuszer's note to this effect.
- 3) President's report of Aug. 24th was read.
- 4) The Trustees have requested Mr. Ernst thru Mr. Marsh to bring action in the Supreme Court against Simpson Thacher & Bartlett & the entire American Bond & Mortgage Committee on the H. evidence. The attorney Mr. Ernst seems reluctant to bring the action from the Museum & suggests ^{that} a bondholder should bring the action. The Trustees however felt that if ~~the~~ Bondholder would bring the action it would not be so effective.
- 5) Mr. Kahn, attorney for the Society suggested that Mr. Marsh & himself visit resident members and ask them to express themselves strongly that they insist to receive this coming season lectures, concerts, exhibitions, recitals, receptions as last

- 6) The educational appropriation ^{of 30,000} was discussed & it was decided for the present to submit to the Court the modified budget as of Marchst 1932, thereby indicating that we must raise an additional sum to maintain all educational activities.
- 7) Difficulties have arisen with Mr. Chadburne of the Youth House who owes \$600.- to the Museum and does not want either to pay nor to get out of the house they have rented. We have taken legal action against them.

*

8) The Chemical Bank is pressing for some payment on account of the outstanding sum of \$17,000. —

9) A lengthy & serious discussion was held on the financial question, how to promote the campaigns & raise funds.

182nd meeting. *note*

105/7
Aug. 30th 1932

- 1) Minutes of 181th were read and approved
- 2) President report of Aug 30th was read
- 3) report of Corona Mundi Aug 30th was submitted
- 4) Report of N. M. Press Aug 1-25th was submitted
- 5) Trustees express their great concern over the prolonged delay in the procedure of our attorneys despite ^{our} the constant urging as expressed by Mr. Koch in his ~~note~~ ^{letter} for immediate action. ~~As In a~~ Besides Mr. Ernst's continued absence he seems to hold back the other attorneys.
- 6) The reply to the foreclosure procedure, ~~prevented~~ ^{prevented} Wolfe and Ernst secured ~~the~~ a delay until Sept. 6th for the foreclosure action. This reply contained a damage suit for 1 million dollars.
- 7) ~~the~~ Efforts are being made to stimulate the renting through publicity, advertising and circularizing. We are trying to stimulate transient renting for any unoccupied space.

- 8.) It was suggested to send circular letters ^{involving} ~~re~~ ^{re} ~~present~~ ^{present} possibilities to art directors and teachers of N.Y. High Schools.
- 9.) ~~Miss Grant~~ ^{It was} proposed to shift the ^{circulating} library of N.U. Press to the lobby at 103d Street and include the larger book stock.
- 10.) Due to the lack of funds the N.U. Bulletin was suspended for July, ~~and~~ August and September, but we hope to resume its publication with October issue.
- 11.) Miss Grant proposes that at the entrance of any new tenant the name should be immediately submitted and one of the Trustees should meet them personally explain the purposes of ~~our~~ Institution and thus bring them closer.

183^d meeting

Sept. 9th 19th
10518

- 1) Minutes of 182^d meeting were read & approved.
- 2) The claim for one million dollar damage suit mentioned in minutes 182 was not as yet filed.
- 3) President reports of Sept 9th was read.
- ~~4) Master Institute report No 149 was read & approved.~~
- 4) ~~Unobscured~~ report No 37 was read & approved.
- 5) Master Institute report No 149 with the statement of Teachers Salaries due for April, May & June, & letter from W. Lake was read & approved.
- 6) \$100. - will be sent to Seluk ~~Thom~~ Clark as part payment.
- 7) Minutes from Unobscured Headquarters were read.
- 8) The book by Dubernois did not as yet reach New-York ~~for some~~ ~~unacceptable~~ reasons. As soon as

2) We will know the cost we will notify about it. Somebody seems to be

9) Mr. March will write a letter to ~~Mr. March~~ ^{Mr. March} as to the establishing of a Museum Branch in Zares. Mr. March will also communicate with ~~Dr. Gunkel~~ ^{Dr. Gunkel}.

10) The Trustees of ~~the~~ express their deepest appreciation of the acceptance of the Supreme Presidency of the League of Culture. ~~The Museum with~~

8) ~~Minutes No 44 from Headquarters were read~~

11) Minutes No 45 from ~~University~~ ^{University} Headquarters were read

12) Re para 6 Mrs Grant will write in reference to ~~the~~ ^{the} ~~address~~ ^{address} of the ~~print~~ ^{print} printing conditions in America.

13) The young ^{publicity} newspaper man ~~was~~ ^{was} ~~referred~~ ^{referred} by Mr. Douglas left for the summer a few days after we met him.

14) The offprint from the scholar will be sent out to some presidents of Societies and friends.

15) The article "Mantreya" will appear in the October issue of World Unity. 4 proofs are to be made.

16) Mr. Frost up to the present date is away & will stay away until end of September, this fact ~~is~~ ^{is} ~~handicapping~~ ^{handicapping} our action greatly.

17) Minutes No 44 from ^{H.R.I.} ~~University~~ ^{University} were read.

18) Re para 1, Mrs Lichtman spoke to all - we heard in re to the approach of the Scandinavian Amer. Foundation

in N.Y. with the aim to ^{help} publish
the III Vol. of the Journal.
Mrs. Dichtmann stated that the Sand
Society is in financial straits.

Mrs. Dichtmann will try some other
approach ^{thru} Mr. Leach, the President of
the Sand Society.

19) ~~The~~ The sum which remained from
the Stokes fund in N.Y. was
temporarily loaned for pressing
obligations during these 5 months
when all the ~~edu~~ income for edu-
cational expenses was com-
pletely cut off. The loan will
be refunded as soon as the
opportunity permits.

20) The Trustees have requested to write
an official letter to Col. Norton expressing
their regrets at his ill-health,

21) The Trustees expressed their enthusiasm
at the great progress of the work
accomplished by the Wasson Lincoln
Research Institute.

22) Prof. Roeber's letter of Aug. 10th to Mr.
Chabas was read & greatly appreciated.

23) Prof. Roeber's letter ^{Aug 10th} to Mrs. Sesneska
was read.

24) Prof. Roeber's letter to Dr. Chamber of Aug.
10th was read.

25) Prof. Roeber's letter ~~from~~ to Baron
de Tank was read.

26) The letter of Sir Krishna Das of July
22nd to Prof. R. was read.

27) Minutes from Wasson Headquarters
of Aug. 16th were read. Miss Grant
will ask Mr. Cooper in re-
gard to the placing of the article
"Rishis".

- 28) Miss Gasant wrote about the press notices on the R & G. Gropius Conference in report No 50. -
- 29) Miss Dickmann will send the list of the remaining paintings she brought to New-York.
- 30) Prof. Raschlasovitch stated that in a reply to the letter addressed to him, that he will always be happy to comply with any wishes and suggestions of Prof. Roerich pertaining to any recommendations received from Prof. Roerich.
- 31) Prof. R's letter to Baron de Tanke of Aug. 10th was read.
- 32) Prof. R's letter to Dr. Chukl. of Aug. 16th was read.
- 33) Prof. Roerich's letter of Aug. 14th sent to Dr. Lukin was read.

- 34) The Trustees ^{are} ~~was~~ deeply indignant to learn from the fact that Mrs. ~~Gasant~~ ^{Gasant} would persist in ~~standing~~ ^{standing} the works of the ~~institutions~~ ^{institutions}, after all the great help ^{given to her with such} ~~given~~ ^{generosity} ~~and~~.
- 35) The report of Mr. Casenough, ^{of Sept. 12th} in regard to rentals was read.
- 36) \$1000. - were sent to the Grossart Headquarters ~~to the~~ via the Imperial Bank, in honor to M. M. Roerich's name.
- 37) \$231. - will be sent ~~by~~ to Mr. Tulpynok. Thus far \$569 were sent to him which include Prof. Roerich's generous contribution. This completes the entire obligation.
- 38) Miss Dickmann ^{has announced that} Miss G. Master Institute has kept since June all cash receipts not entering them into the

into the general accounts
~~for~~ in order to pay the teachers
~~for~~ and all from Jan on as
well as all current expenses.
~~Thus~~ The Keweenaw Museum
press has ^{also} held its cash to meet
current obligations.

39) It was decided to pay to the teachers
the remaining outstanding accounts
~~to the teachers~~ for the month of
April, the sum of \$

5) The Trustees were all so happy
to welcome Mrs. Koch in their
midst again

Meeting N=184

- 1) Minutes of 1839 meeting were read & approved.
- 2) Presidents report of Sept 23^d was read.
- 3) Minutes N=147 & 48 from Moscow headquarters were read.
Re para 2 N47 - we never received the letter expressing regarding the appointment of Mr. Koch as cashier.
- 4) \$100 - in addition to the \$100 - sent before ~~see~~ for the Brussels expenses were sent to M^r de Vaux Philippan

6) Re para 13 minutes ~~for~~ ^{about} ~~for~~ in fraternal meeting, it will be held around the middle of Oct.

7) Mr. Labarte, secretary of the Group Interamericana, visited the European Center and reported that ~~that~~ his first conversation with Dr. Ch. Mason he has asked for ^{more} funds for America

complaining to a stranger that \$40 would enable him to make publicity connections ~~in~~ in the press. Mr. Labadie also reported that the Paris Tribune knew nothing of the Bruges Conference & the papers thanked Mr. Labadie for the information he gave them.

8) The Trustees were very happy to hear that the results of the second Bruges Conference were so gratifying to Prof. de Rerich.

9) We have not received anything about the results ~~for~~ of the Bruges Conference from Baron de Paul directly.

10) As soon as the contents for the ^{new} books of Prof. de Rerich arrive we shall approach publishers as to the publishing of them throughly.

11) \$150 were transferred from Chiklase to Zeluk for the book Infinity.

12) Prof. de Rerich's letter to Dr. Chiklase of Aug. 20th was read.

13) Prof. de Rerich's letter of Aug. 20th was read.
14) Dr. Chiklase's letter to Prof. de Rerich of Aug. 1st was read.

15) Dr. Durkin will be notified not to ~~print~~ ^{make} the reproduction of "Bhagawan" & keep the money.

16) The book of Sursumis did not get arrive, even not a sample copy.

17) Mr. Koch stressed the importance of making connections with the newspaper people & would like personally to meet them when they come to the Museum.

18) The Trustees were ^{very} gratified to see that the ^{French & Belgian} Press have carried broadly the news of the Bruges Conference. (from Dr. Chiklase report)

(see read:)

19) It was proposed to get a radio
have one weekly & arrange
various programs of the French
Museum activities.

20) Mr. Chloster's report N/1 were read,

21) Miss Lichtmann read Mr. Shubiger's
letter to her of Aug. 30.

~~22) Miss Lichtmann read Dr. Lesage's
French letter of Aug 26th~~

⊗ Mr. Hartmann will be notified
officially of the rumors of
the botanists intention to return.

22) Miss Lichtmann read letters
of Dr. Jacques Reerich to her of
Aug. 26. ⊕

23) Prof. Reerich's letters to Dr. Chloster
of N=35 & 36; Prof. de Reerich's
letter of N=37 to Baron Taube;
Prof. de Reerich's letter to Mr. Guszik
of Aug. 22

-24) It was decided to offer to Miss
Poputshoff \$25. a week, so that she
shall stay a whole ^{day} Mr. Koch being
in need & exceedingly busy because
of the receivership and litigations.

-25) Mrs. Lichtmann reports that
Miss Cummings will take charge
of book keeping & secretarial work
for \$30. a week, instead of having
a special bookkeeper thus
saving \$52.50 a week. Instead of
an evening secretary scholarship
students will be asked part
time evenings & friends will
be asked to help during the day.

26) The R. M. Bulletin was under discussion. It was decided to issue the next number for Nov. 1st.

In view of the present conditions it was discussed to issue the Bulletin every two months unless cheaper estimates are found or conditions improve.

Minutes of 185th Meeting of the Trustees of R. M. held on Oct. 8th 1932 New York
Present: L. L. H., Chairman
E. J. L., S. L., F. R. J., M. M. L.

1) Minutes of 184th Meeting were read and approved.

2) Minutes of 184th Meeting were read. ^{the Trustees of} ~~the~~ ^{from} ~~Trustees'~~ Headquarters were read.

3) In re. to para 3 about a room ^{in Buenos Aires} dedicated to R. M. Branch. ~~They~~ ^{He} will draft a letter.

According to Prof. Roerich's suggestions & ~~submit~~ ^{submit} it for the approval of the Trustees.

The Buenos Aires Museum has now paintings. All other paintings have been returned to the Museum. ~~Set~~ ^{more} should any paintings be added to the Buenos Aires collection to complete the room.

4) Publicity in reference to the Beograd room and Bruges were sent out.

5) Mr. Horch made a motion ^{made a motion} suggested that all publicity pertaining to the Museum ^{proper} & Prof. Roerich should be shown to all Trustees before being sent out. This

Miss Grant wishes to add to the motion that this motion should be extended to ^{important} letters ^{& documents} pertaining to Prof. Roerich. Mr. Lichtman seconded the motion which was unanimously accepted.

pertaining to Government's book

6) An invoice arrived yesterday announcing the arrival of the books. There is a penalty duty of \$8.50 because of the omission of the mention of the country where it was printed. As soon as we receive it it will be sent out

7) Minutes of 50th Meeting of the Trustees of R. M. from University Headquarters have read.

8) Re pa 1, No 50 - The Trustees are happy to announce that the suit for damages of \$500,000. - was started against the ^{major group} Risky Committee for damage in their efforts to try to through the Museum in difficulties. The summonses were served on them.

9) Miss Lichtman has brought ^{before} the Trustees the letter of Dr. George Perich of Sept. 4th in re. to the ~~giving up~~ apartments. The Trustees wish to

say in response to this that Dr. Perich as Trustee & Director having rendered innumerable services to the work is of course entitled to his residence but as temporary measure it is accepted.

10) Mrs. Lichtman read Dr. G. Perich's letter from Sept 9th to her. The Trustees were ~~very~~ happy to hear that the two guns were taken away from Kay Chand as a result of the ^{part} suit brought against him.

11) Mrs. Lichtman presented a proposed budget of M. J. which the Trustees will discuss at the next meeting.

~~12) Mrs. Lichtman brought up the question of keeping the Mast. fund, monthly per separate account for expenses of the Teachers salaries & offering of the Master Institute's budget.~~

~~The ~~various~~ ~~ways~~ ~~of~~ ~~bringing~~ ~~up~~ ~~about~~ ~~the~~ ~~trustees~~ ~~disturb~~ ~~business~~ ~~of~~ ~~the~~ ~~trustees~~ ~~present~~ ~~at~~ ~~the~~ ~~place~~ ~~who~~ ~~decided~~~~

12) It was decided to have this ~~with~~ 3 half days a week. Memorandum ~~from~~ ~~the~~ ~~trustees~~ ~~is~~ ~~herewith~~ ~~attached~~.

1 Minutes 186th Meeting of Trustees of R. M. Held on Oct. 16th 1932
(Present: L. L. H., N. S. H., E. J. L., S. L. P. P. M. M. L.)

1) Minutes of 185th Meeting were read & approved

2) R. M. Reports nos 131 & 132 were presented & approved

3) ~~Minutes~~ ~~of~~ ~~the~~ ~~President's~~ ~~Report~~ ~~of~~ ~~Oct~~ ~~15th~~ was read & approved

4) Minutes of 51st meeting of the Trustees from

Minutes Headquarters were read. The Trustees will be happy to comply with Prof. Roerich's request regarding the order & procedure of the meetings & execution of various matters.

5) The Roerich Society will mimeograph the general outline of the design of Culture which will be sent out.

6) In re. to para 3 m. regarding the 2 pending from the Headquarters which returned "unclaimed" we very much regret that this has happened because of the terrible negligence of the secretary to whom ~~the~~ ~~card~~ ~~from~~ ~~the~~ ~~Post~~ ~~Office~~ ~~has~~ ~~been~~ ~~given~~ ~~and~~ ~~she~~ ~~did~~ ~~not~~ ~~attend~~ ~~to~~ ~~them~~. Since then this secretary ~~(an emergency girl)~~ was moved to another office. Miss Linden is now in charge of Mr. Koch's office.

7) In re. to para. N=O, the heavy volumes with the monographs could not be

2 sent by book post because 4 only parcels weighing 6 pounds each but put them book post. (Statement from Miss Grant)

8) Re para 4 - the dinner of Cornie Law Institute was not given because of their ^{partly} commercial purposes & interests. It was found best to ~~stay~~ not to enter into any closer relationship with them.

9) Re para 5 wishes to state that Miss Grant ~~will report on the 10% royalties which were~~ ^{listed in the out-standings of accounts sent to Prof. Ketcher.} ~~in the report.~~

As to the monies for all other departments which would have been otherwise used for the departments' needs & obligations solely were used for the Museum for the urgent needs & obligations of the Museum due to maintain ~~the~~ all the activities of the Museum during the period when no income has been available including the present time.

this very same omission 105/18 on other occasions

10) Re para 6. Miss Horch has pointed out to Dr. Ketcher several times & also the great advantage of the Sprague Club's association with the Museum. Mr. Horch has recently again called Dr. Ketcher's attention to it, but he remained non-committal.

11) The Trustees were very happy to see the great response of the Indian Press to Prof. Ketcher's universal thought and ~~we very~~ gratified have read the enumerations of Prof. Ketcher's articles which have appeared in the Indian papers with great gratification. Miss Grant will send a duplicate copy of the articles which have appeared in the American Press of the last year.

12) The \$100. - which Henry de Vaux has laid out for the trip to Ganges were sent to her some time ago.

13) Minutes of 46th Meeting of Board of Trustees

Kiva Research Institute from
Kerrvati Headquarters were
read

14) Mrs. Dickmann has approached the
Mrs. Lund as to the coming in contact
with the Kendra Association in Chicago.
Mrs. Lund ~~is~~ will write to them as
soon as she will receive the address
& more information about this
association.

15) The lawyer will be again approached as
to the two copies of the letters sent by
Kelp from the lawyers to the British
Police & King Charles to surrender the
guns, writing him to send the
copies to the Trustees at the
Headquarters.

16) It was decided to have combine the
Nov. 17th celebration with a friendship
dinner followed by ~~speaking~~ a
program. Mrs. Dickmann suggests the report a

synopsis of the Bronze Conference be read by Mr.
Korch at the celebration of Nov. 17th 1919 105/19

17) Mrs. Grant assigned that the ~~pro-~~
proposed International meeting
be postponed to the beginning of
Oct.

18) Mrs. Korch suggests to invite Dr. Eugene
Boul ^{of Geneva} as honorary member of the
Kerich Society. This was unanimously
accepted to invite him.

19) Mrs. Korch read Dr. Chklaser's letter
& report of Sept. 30th

20) Mr. Dickmann has suggested that photo-
graphs of the headquarters of various
Kerich ~~Societies~~ ^{Museums} exhibited in the
Museum. ^{Sept 5th}

21) Dr. Chkl's letter of Aug. 31st to Prof. Kerich
was read.

22) What symbol should be used for the
World League of Culture.

23) Prof. Kerich's letter of Sept. 13th to
Dr. Chkl. was read.

24) Prof. Kerich's letter to ~~Baron de Tanke~~
of Sept 20th was read.

25) Mr. Korch has laid before the Trustees
the list of liabilities & payments

The question as to how to cover these amounts was discussed

- 26) due on Oct 15th & Nov 15th
- 27) Prof. Ralston's letter to Baron Tanke of Sept 29th was read.
- 28) Miss Lightman suggested that the report "article Maytraya" be issued in a nice colorful paper so as to have it look like a little book.
- 29) The cost of the Governors book was \$210.- including clearing & transportation charges

Minutes of 187th Meeting of Trustees of R. M. held on Oct. 23rd 1932 in N.Y.

Present: L.L.H., Chairman, N.S.H., E.J.L., S.L., F.R.G., M.M.L.

- 1) Minutes of 186th Meeting were read & approved.
- 2) President's Report of Oct. 22nd was read & approved.
- 3) Master Institute Report from Oct. 8th -

to Oct. 23rd was read & approved.

- 4) In reference to the tax question a formal closure question the Trustees have unanimously decided to work along the lines to postpone the foreclosure suit and bring the tax question before the Court fighting for total tax exemption.
- 5) In ref. to the visit of Mr. J. K. Kelly mentioned in the present report Miss Grant wishes to say that Mr. Kelly's coming up to see her as a personal friend after for the first time after 17 years as he has been away in China.

6) Minutes of 52nd Meeting of Trustees of R. M. from Anuswati Headquarters were read.

7) Re pa 5 N-52. The Trustees were happy to hear of the great response in the Indian Press to Prof de R.'s Paintings.

8) Re ja 6 n. 52. Regarding the endorsement list of Banner of Peace. This list is of course a preliminary one, compiled exclusively from the letters, which are in the files of Banner of Peace office in New-York. We shall add to this list all the endorsements, when we receive them from Paris & Bruges as well as those names which we have ~~not~~ otherwise than in Banner of Peace office. Miss Campbell & Miss Fritsch offered to help in the Banner of Peace office.

9) In ref. to the royalties a printing of the future books. The Trustees wish to thank Prof. Reisch not ~~to~~ thank, warmly Prof. Reisch once again for his generosity in donating the royalties towards the printing of the books and suggest that the royalties ^{begin} from the date when the funds were deposited to the

Agni-Yoga fund.

10) In ref. to para 10, we shall replenish the Agni-Yoga fund at the very first opportunity. If funds will be kept by Mrs. Seidel who will act as treasurer, as approved by Prof. Reisch.

11) As per request of Prof. R. catalogue of Japanese ~~exhibitions~~ ^{prints} will be attended. Minutes of 4th - Meeting of Trustees of Wicovati Head. Res. Inst. of R. M. from Wicovati Headquarters were read.

13) In reference to the budget sent by the Trustees of Wicovati Headquarters. The Trustees wish to state that they are deeply grateful that in view of the present circumstances the budget had to be so drastically cut. Mr. Reisch wishes to state that we here in N.Y. will curtail in every possible way to have this great work

of Messrs continued.
Mrs Lichtman will approach
Major Cook for a support of
this work

14) Mrs Lichtman has thus far found
them success. Consultant that there
is no Bendix Corporation in
Chicago, but that there is a company
Bendix, presenter of report.
Attempt a speech. Mrs. and
will be asked to approach him
as in capacity of president of board.
Final. I will approach for
a possible donation of for the
journal.

15) The financial questions ^{budgets} were
discussed ^{as well as} ways of economy to put
into the ~~budget~~ ^{budget} has allotted
\$16,000. - for ^{operational} expenses
the sum being equal to the present

tax exemption. ^{The} temporary conditions
demand economy all trustees will give
very careful consideration to all possible
steps to curtail the expenses ~~without~~
~~impairing the work~~. The budget will
be prepared for next week's meeting.
It was decided to have

a) to have the Museum hours from
1 to 5 o'clock ~~excepting~~ Saturday the
Museum will be open the whole day from
10 to 5. The Museum, with of course
be always be open for ~~an~~ important
visitors & people from out of town.

b) placing the special lighting fixture
in Room, Room a hall 18 to be
used in the evening for lectures.

c) to discharge Mrs Porontchik
Mrs Lichtman will happily work
Mr. Koch in this work

d) The telephone expenses
will be checked & reduced!

the
g) Bulletin to be suspended in the printed form & be issued as a mimeographed copies

f) Since Aug. 1st ^{the} ^{the} ^{the} plathin is no more on our payroll being the accountant for the R. M. Department

16) The Trustees agreed to the proposal of Mr. Tolles to have a school of weaving in association with Master Justata on condition of 25% on each pupil which he brings. Master Justata furnish a studio for his furnishings & looms.

17) Mr. Kuroki has written to Council General Harinouchi suggesting to have a Perich Hall in Kyoto instead of Tokio

Minutes of 188th Meeting of Trustees of R. M. held on Oct. 30th

Present: L. L. H. Chairman, N. S. H., E. J. L. S. L., F. R. G., M. M. L. —

1) Minutes of 187th Meeting were read & approved.

2) R. M. report no. 133 was presented & approved

3) President's report of Oct. 29th was read & approved.

4) Uruswati Kim. Res. Inst. report no. 40 was presented & approved.

5) Perich Museum minutes No. 1 of Oct 5th 1939 from the Trustees ~~of the~~ from the Headquarters ^{of Harinouchi} were read.

6) The Trustees are awaiting the ~~prose~~ contents of the book "Fiery Stronghold"

I will make every effort to find funds for publication of this book

7) Re para 9 ^{Mrs. Lichtmann wishes to report that} minutes of the M. has having no bookkeeper since May until end of Sept. Mr. Plutkin checked up weekly all income from students.

Miss Grant wishes to state that the reports of income are made daily to the accountant (Plutkin personally & Mr. Lehman) during the month of Sept. the cash receipts were returned by the Press for pressing demands, but all checks together with a full itemization of income was given to the accountant. Miss Grant wishes to state however that Mr. Plutkin refused ^{to accept} from the Press ^{the} statements & checks. The central

accountant keeps all bookkeeping & records of the Press.

8) Re para 10 N.Y. Miss Grant wishes to say as to the R. H. Bulletin subscriptions. Mr. Lichtmann suggests that for outside paying subscribers should be notified by a letter that for a certain time during the time of depression the bulletin will be come out in a mimeographed form & their subscriptions be continued.

9) Minutes of ^{of Oct. 5th} the N.Y. R. Institute from the Trustees of R.H. from the Democratic Headquarters were read.

10) Re the letters in reference to the surrender of the guns in spite of our efforts since Aug. the 5th we cannot obtain the copies of these letters from the cameras. We are keeping constantly in touch with them urging them

The Lawyers

to give us these copies. ~~He~~
did not ~~mean~~ ^{the copies} that the lawyers of these
letters therefore it is so difficult to
obtain them. The trustees are indignant at
this unbecomg attitude of the lawyers.

11) In reply to para 10. Mrs. Lightman
wishes to report that Dr. Kramel
has investigated the whole matter
in re. to the telescope ^{has} sent all
documents to Prof. Reisch

12) The budgets were discussed & a
tentative budget will be sent to the
trustees at the Muskat Headquarters.

13) Prof. Reisch's N^o 43 to Dr. Cappa
& Prof. Reisch's letter N^o 43 to
Baron de Taube were read &
Prof. de Reisch's suggestions note
to the Oriental Institute were greatly
appreciated.

14) ~~We do~~ It was decided to sell the
~~fragments~~ book by Swernois for 40 cents

R.H.

20 copies were given to the Press
for sale. The books will be displayed
for sale at the Siberian evening &
will be distributed amidst the
bookshops here & abroad. ~~Also~~

15) The receipts of the Master Institute
from Sept. 29th to Oct. 29th amount
to \$2952.16. ~~_____~~

Minutes of 189th Meeting of Trustees
of R.I.I. held on Nov. 6th 1932 N.Y.

Present: L.L.H. Chairman, N.S.H.,
E.J.L., S.L., F.R.G., M.M.L.,
— Sidney Newburger

1) Minutes of 188th Meeting were
read & approved.

2) M. Inst. report Oct. 21st - Novem. 4th
was presented & approved.

3) R. M. Press report Oct 14 - Nov. 3^d
was presented & approved.

(*) Nov. 5th

~~In referring to the minutes of the meeting the President made a statement the question of preparing for a smaller bulletin.~~

- 4) President's report of Nov. 5th was read.
- 5) Minutes from the Trustees Headquarters No. 2 were read.
- 6) In ref. to para No. 1 minutes No. 2 all articles for the Book "Frey Story" had been translated, but not yet all revised.
- 7) It was decided to ~~print~~ issue the offprints of the article "Martyr" in a cover. It was decided to order 250 copies.
- 8) Mr. Sikorsky will be approached in reference to the Regim sketch at the first opportunity. Mr. Sikorsky does not

9) ~~Re~~ ^{partial annual} report of CBA was not included as an annual message.

10) Mrs. Campbell Chism who as ^{gather} has sent you a letter is an employee of the Emergency Work Bureau & one of ~~the~~ ^{greatest} gaudian eccentrics.

11) The Friendship Bond Committee has passed a resolution at its meeting in October, protesting the ^{committee} damage done by the ~~Magazine~~ ^{committee} letter to the campaign for funds. This resolution will be used as evidence in our lawsuits.

12) Minutes of 2nd Meeting of Trustees of W. Him. Res. Inst. of R.M. held on Oct. 12th 1932 at Worsvoti Keal quarters were read.

13) Re. the teachers salaries due since

April & May partial payment should be made as recommended by Mrs. Lichtmann in N.Y. report from Oct. 21st to Nov. 4th.

14) Dr. Chklover's report 1/7 was read.

15) Miss Lichtmann has ^{awarded} the ~~sex~~ Helena Reich seal as tip to Manuel ^{very talented} Naras, of Porto-Rican boy, 14 years of age. It with profound joy that Miss Lichtm. will fulfill this task. ^{the world}

16) A meeting of League of Culture will be held on Nov. 22nd.

17) ¹⁰⁰⁰ ~~The~~ ^{campaign post} ~~Christmas~~ cards were ordered as Christmas cards greetings at a cost of \$28. with the envelopes.

18) Dr. Chklover's letter N=39 & Prof. de R. was read.

19) Prof. de Rensch's ^{letter of} Oct. 13th N=44 to Baron

de Toubie was read.

20) Prof. de Rensch's ^{letter of} Oct. 9th N=44 to Dr. Chklover was read.

21) The cover for the book "Heart" ^{requested by Mme de Rensch} was sent on Friday by air-mail as ^{off} ~~sent~~ 15 pages, 2 copies of the "Heart".

Minutes of 190th Meeting of Trustees of R. M. held on Nov. 13th 1932 N.Y.
(Present: L.L.H. Chairman, N.S.H., E.J.L. S.L.F.R.g. S.N., M.M.L.)

1) Minutes of 189th Meeting of Trustees of R. M. were read & approved.

2) R. M. report N=134 was presented.

3) The article "Plundered Heart" was not translated in view of the ~~corrected~~ alterations which were expected ~~and did not arrive~~. It will be at once translated & sent over.

- 4) 14 pages of "The Heart" were sent ^{with} this week's mail to Mme Rorich.
- 5) President's report of Aug. Nov. 12th was read.
all possibilities of reducing the expenses.
- 6) ~~The layout of the~~ ~~defect~~ in the dining room was discussed. Possibilities of renting out the restaurant were discussed. The salaries of headwaiter & waiter are low. ~~The prices of food~~
- 7) In re. to the campaign inaugurated by Dr. Novak, Dr. Fisher having accepted to act as treasurer we can proceed preparing the lists with ~~the~~ photostats of copies of Dr. Novak's letter to the Museum to be distributed among our friends & patrons for the soliciting of funds.
- 8) ^{from Nov. 10th 1931 to Oct. 31st 1932} Detailed statement of income & expenses of the various committees ~~was~~ was presented.

- 9) It was decided to approach Mr. Cochrane offering him the presidency of the World League of Culture.
- 10) Mrs. Dichtmann has proposed to add to the faculty Mr. Fred Tanker who brings a few of his pupils & promises to develop his class. Mr. Tanker is a ^{well known} portraitist & etcher of renown.
- 11) It was further decided to have also Prof. Hoffmann, eminent ~~painter~~ ^{earliest} teacher from Munich cooperate & associate with some Museum activity. Prof. Hoffmann Hoffmann, come thru Mr. Schreck.
- 12) Since Mr. Feltz as Feltz agrees to bring his school of weaving under the Master In. jurisdiction, it was decided to accept his proposition of affiliation with the Master post on 25% on all students he brings & 50% on all students ^{he receives} from the school.

B) Minutes of the 3rd meeting of the trustees, Nov. 19th were read.

N^o 3 para 1^a - after several requests asking several times of Rums for the placing of articles of Rums has arranged to have the article "Legends of Asia" with photographs of Prof. Wilson and the illustrations in a magazine called "All Nations Magazine". In addition he has promised to publish one of Prof. R's new articles in the "Thinker".

N^o 3 para 1. b) The Trustees have decided not to have a mimeographed Bulletin but to devise means a way to come out with a smaller Bulletin, which

N^o 3 para 3 American Buddhist will be looked for

N^o 3 para 4. Duvemore's

11 para 4. Rev. Dr. Luther Nathan
election of Supreme President of World League of Culture. ~~we did~~
it was not as yet sent because the election of a President did not yet take

place. ~~Kept that~~ The decision upon being the Presidency is still pending

N^o 42 para 8 Second class magazines have been sent to Ishomaru etc. on Oct 29th

N^o 40 para 50. Mr. Forch will reply to in re to Giel's land

N^o 37 para 8 - (miscellaneous) 1st class. We have inquired several times but could not yet ascertained whether received or not

N^o 31 para 19. - All review copies of Annual Title were sent out at once upon receipt arrival of Dr. Parrish's & request. The Trustees' office has received already ^{some} replies from those whom sent.

? (4 copies to Dr. P.) see memo book

N^o 25 para 32. Various Campaign Com. will try to arrange album for sale before Christmas

N^o 24 para 4 - Mrs. Schwartz was not yet approached.

about the justifications
in his letters to the other. Let's other
It is unbelievable that the S.S.O.
could reward the Rupp, Chand with
a gun. This can be explained
either by complete ~~unconscious~~ ignorance
of Rupp, Chand's true ~~real~~
malicious attitude or by some
unexplainable scheme.

20) Prof. Rensch's letter N^o 5 Oct
to Baron Tante was read & its wonderful
spirit greatly appreciated.

21) Baron de Tante's letter to Prof
Rensch N^o 13th ~~Baron de Tante~~ Oct
was read & its contents
fully appreciated.

22) Dr. Chlaper's letter to Prof. Rensch
was read.

23) Prof. Rensch's N^o 45 Oct 2nd was
read & all the Trustees have greatly
appreciated Prof. Rensch's report
(letter to Chlaper)

24) Dr. Chlaper has agreed in his
last letter to Miss Lightman for
the cover of "Hierarchy" to be sent to him.
According to Mme de Rensch's request
this cover was sent to Mme de Rensch
on Nov. the 4th

25) Prof. de Rensch's letter to Mr. Ali-Akbar
of Oct. 14th was read.

26) Prof. de Rensch's letter to Bodiansky
of Oct 12th was read.

27) Prof. de Rensch's letter to Desai
of Oct. 13th was read.

28) Dr. Chlaper's report of N^o 13
N^o 119 was read with all the
enclosures. The Trustees were
happy to read the various expressions
of enthusiasm from our ^{addressed to Prof. Rensch} ~~representatives~~
representatives on the success
of Rensch's Conference.

29) Mrs. Lichtmann reports that after repeated reminders to Mrs. Bendix that the latter did not write to Bendix in Chicago, she wrote Mrs. Lichtmann herself, sending him 2 journals ^{and letters}.

30) Mr. Koch suggests ~~some~~ publication be sent out in ~~to~~ to the Kellogg Foundation in Brussels, taking some facts from the Chamber's reports.

Minutes of 191st Meeting of Trustees of R. M. held on Nov. 20th 1932 N.Y.
Chairman Present: L. L. H. Chairman
N. S. H., E. J. L., S. L., F. R. G., S. N., M. M. L.

1) Minutes of 190th Meeting were read & approved.

2) President report of Nov. 19th was read.

3) Minutes of the 4th meeting of the Trustees (November Oct. 26th) were read.

4) Our late friend Dr. Kammer having served ~~as~~ as Honorary Advisor ~~was~~ & his name

5) This grant has approached Mrs. Spornberg & Mr. Caspary, both of whom were unable to accept the Presidency. Mr. Theophile Schneider has accepted to act as the President of American

Section of the ~~World~~ World League
of Culture.

6) para 3 No 4. Mrs. Horsch tried several
times in vain to locate the lady who
was interested in paintings.

The Nicholas Russian Painting & Art
Collection Inc. will ~~with~~ with great
care consider this matter in interesting
Museums

7) pa 4 No 4. Dr. Novak's noble idea
of a campaign is an outside matter.

8) Miss Lightman is in charge of
the correspondence with Baron
de Taulbe. For the past two months
Baron de Taulbe has sent very short
notes in view of his grave illness
of his wife as he states. ^{During}

this ~~winter~~ Baron de Taulbe intended to
send us the copies of the letters, he
sends to Prof. de Boerich but
we did not receive any for the past

two months. Miss Lightman read a card
received from Baron Taulbe of Nov. 4th. A copy ^{herewith} attached.

9) In the Spinoza advertisement the
R. U. Press will ~~look up~~ ^{write to them} this commission

10) Mr. S. Boerich's name was included
in the catalogue of the Exhibition
of Portraits. A catalogue is attached
herewith

11) Mrs. Horsch will notify Mr. P. B. M.
Kias, Allhabat Museum of high school
as honorary correspondent of
the French Society at Mentana
at the suggestion of Prof. Boerich

12) Para 10 No 4 Two
Yarumenes Monographs &
one Mentana Monograph were
sent.

13) Para 11 No 4. Mrs. Lightman wishes
to report that the reports of
Masha Institute are sent as they are

issued. She will deeply appreciate
to know which ~~the~~ number
is missing.

14) Mrs. Kerch ~~is~~ has sent several
copies of the America Buddhist
of Jan - Apr. 1930 to Prof. Kierich
on Nov. 14. This in re to para 3.
N:3.

15) Re para 3 N:4. It may interest Prof.
Kierich to know that the ~~the~~ ~~the~~ ~~the~~
articles ~~the~~ letters in the make up
of the last issues of the Spinoza Magazine.
The Spinoza quarterly is not supported
by outside subscriptions but by
the contributions of the active members
of the Spinoza Kierich Society.

Re the R. M. Bulletin. Miss S. Y. Lichtman
suggests to have one page of the ~~the~~
R. M. Bulletin dedicated to poetry & to
acknowledge outstanding Poetry Clubs &

④ do it only if it will pay us

Poetry Societies offering them to print
papers of their members monthly &
thus enrolling ~~the~~ subscribers. We will
His ~~great~~ ^{main} wish to in accordance
with her ~~proposal~~ of a few weeks
ago proposes to change the Bulletin
to a Magazine of a more general
character which could attract more general subscribers.
Following up Prof. Kierich's suggestion
Mrs. Kerch ~~will~~ propose to the R. Societies
to have paying members that they give
part of the ^{fee} membership fee for the
subscriptions for their members.
Could not this also apply to the
members of World League of Culture?
Mrs. Lichtman suggests that
from the enrollment fee found by say
\$5. - paid by each new student
\$1. - be taken off towards that
student receiving the Bulletin for
that year with the provision
that next year his subscription

be continued.
Letters as suggested by Prof. Rensch
will be sent out to Societies & students
of Master Institute.
A 4 page Bulletin will be issued
in Dec.

16) 7 more pages covering ^{pages from 80 to 99} of the
"Heart" were sent with the last mail
on Nov. 18th.

17) Mr. Kimmel & Mrs. Seidel asked Mrs.
Leichtmann to bring before the Trustees
his offer to loan for an indefinite
period of time \$150. - in order to hasten
the publication of the Books. The
Trustees wish to express to Mr.
Kimmel & Mrs. Seidel their deepest
appreciation for their cooperation
We will greatly appreciate receiving the proceeds of a crowd
for Mikonosy & the Society

18) Re. para 10 N-4. We wish to state
that the distorted word "gre" should
read "free space"

19) Minutes ^{of the} 4th Meeting of
the Trustees of Mr. H. R. Dept.
held at Wampvati Headquarters
on Oct. 26th, received on Nov. 18th

20) Re para 11 N-4
Mr. Kerch & Miss Lightman will be
made giving all the details about
the Kelly matter, which would be
presented to officials by Prof. de Rensch
& Dr. Georges de Rensch on their trip
to Berlin. Mr. Kerch will give a
detailed report about the Kelly matter
& the Carriers.

21) Re. para 9 N-4. We wish to state that
the first request of Dr. Rensch the
report of the Mrs. New-York activities
be sent so as to reach the Headquarters
no later than December arrived here
after about Nov. 14th. The report will
be sent with this week's mail

22) Miss Lichtmann has given 5
books of Impressions to Miss Lichtmann
for distribution to her friends, Dr. Rabin
Glasbitch & Dr. Peskher &
5 copies for sale.

Minutes 191st Meeting of
Trustees of R. M. held on Nov. 27th
1932.

Present: L. L. H. Chairman, H. S. H.
E. J. L., S. L., F. R. G., M. M. L.

1) Minutes of 190th meeting were read
& approved.

2) R. M. report no. 135 was presented.

3) President's report of Nov. 26th was
read.

4) Minutes of the 5th meeting of the Trustees ^{from}
Nov. 2^d ^{which} ~~arrived~~ here on Nov. 22^d. ~~The minutes~~

were read.

5) Mr. Korch read and wrote a letter to Dudley
Crafts Watson in re. to the ~~World~~ ^{World} Banker
of Peace being represented at the ~~World~~
World's Fair at Chicago. Mr. Korch
will likewise take up this question
with Mr. Corbett & Mr. Harsh.

6) All the receipts for painting from
the European Branches as well as the
Branches were placed in the Nicholas
Pavilion Painting Corporation.

7) The Trustees appreciated deeply Prof
Korich's address at the meeting of
the late Dr. Wood as Member
in Perpetuity of the Russian
Society. This address will be
read at the evening in memory
of Dr. Wood on Nov. 30th
~~1932~~. ⊗

8) The insignia 1st class to be con-
ferred upon the Duke Louis Victor

de Broglie N. L. will be sent to
Mrs de Gaulle according with
Prof. Reicher's instructions
with the next boat.

9) Regarding the ^{approximate sum of} \$30,000. tied up by
the Supreme Court, was not as yet
revised back.

10) In reference to Duvornoy's book Miss
Lichtmann is translating it and
has acquired some funds already for
the publication. Mr. Newberger donated
\$60 - Mrs Campbell \$5. - The Trustees
will contribute also according
to present possibilities, further
funds will be solicited.

11) Dr. F. Lukin upon Prof. Reicher's
motion it was duly resolved to elect
Dr. Felix Lukin as honorary
Advisor of the Reicher Museum

12) We are trying our best to cover

locate the indicated people.
All the campaign Committees were
not very active as to the collecting
of funds. We must strengthen all
the Committees.

13) Since Dr. Cousins left us Mrs.
Lichtmann suggests to elect Dr.
Lorman as Chairman of the
Program of Peace Committee.

13) Urusvati Minutes N=5 from
Urusvati Headquarters were read.

14) In answer to the Urusvati Minutes
N=5 a detailed report is sent
to the Trustees of the Headquarters

15) The address of Mr. Shapiro mentioned
in minutes 20 para 8 could not
be located.

16) Miss Lichtmann suggest to give a
reception to Prof. Picard when at the
Museum & invite him to live in the

Museum during his stay in New York. Miss Lichtmann suggests to write to the Nelsonian Government extending this invitation to Prof. Piccard.

17) ~~Prof. P.~~ Miss Grant suggests that when Mr. J. Cappard comes to N.Y. by invitation of the Trustees of Museum to keep up a friendly relation, make a friendly contact with him. The press has been in communication with him.

18) ~~It is~~ due to the new attack of the opposition in trying putting any injunction to stop the Educational expenses until the case comes up before the Appellate Division on Sep 9th. Hence, drastic curtailment will have to be made again.

19) Miss ^{84/4} Lichtmann reported that she saw yesterday Mr. Stokes (approx)

him for a contribution to the works. He has contributed \$100. - to the publishing of the book "The Heart" which he will give after Jan. 1st being financially tied up.

20) Miss E. J. Lichtmann ^{read two} of letters from C. Mahon ^{of Oct 31st} ~~and~~ ^{from} ~~the~~ copies will be sent to Prof. M. de Roerich by Miss Lichtmann. The copy of Dr. Luxin's letter to E. J. L. will also be sent to Prof. Roerich.

21) The missing paragraphs ~~of~~ of infinity between 683 & 765 were translated by ~~inserted~~ ^{inserted} by Miss Lichtmann & Miss Grant on Sunday Nov. 20th. The further ^{missing} paragraphs from 715 to 744 will be inserted ^{translated} from the manuscript in N.Y. as per request of M. de Roerich.

22) Letter of Chkl. to Prof. Roerich of Oct 17th was read.

23) Prof. Roerich's letter N47, Nov. 2nd to Dr. Chklam

was read & greatly appreciated

24) Prof. de R.'s letter to Baron de Tambe of Nov. 2nd was read.

25) Prof. de R.'s letter to General Potoczi of Nov. 2nd was read.

26) The Trustees deeply valued the wonderful spirit of the 10 copies of Ameghin's book were given to Mr. Wrightman for distribution.

27) Letter to Mr. Gussard from Prof. Rensch was read.

28) Prof. Rensch's letter to H. L. Duhin was read.

~~The following speakers will participate at the signing of the Memorial in the memory of H. L. Woodward:
Rep. Dr. M. Guthrie, Rep. Clinton Mason of St. Bartholomew's~~

~~The Council will be Mr. W. H. H. H. Chairman, H. H. H. will be read by H. H. H. and 3 songs by H. H. H.~~

Minutes of 192nd Meeting of Trustees of R. M. held on Dec. 4th 1932. N.Y.

Present: L. L. H., Chairman, N. S. H., E. J. L., S. L., F. R. G., S. N., M. M. L.

1) Minutes of 191st Meeting were read & approved.

2) President's report of Dec. 3rd was read.

3) Master Institute of R. M. report N. 156 was presented.

4) Minutes of the 6th meeting of the Trustees of Novosibirsk Nov. 9th were read.

5) Prof. French's address No 3 to the World League of Culture No 3 was greatly appreciated by the Trustees. The address will be read on Dec 13th at the World League of Culture meeting.

6) The insertion ~~of~~ ^{for Prof. French's address dedicated to} Dr. Kennedy's address was inserted in the place indicated.

7) In reference to the books mentioned in para 3 n^o 6 we wish to state that since the book *Am Yoga* in the original language was printed in Paris the Trustees have each only one copy & could not send the 100 books to Dr. Dixon. 50 books of second book & 50 books of the second book will be sent. Mr. March will however write to Dr. Chiklaren to be shall send the 100 books.

8) In reference to the replies to the Mr. Johnson mentioned in para 4 i) all the replies were strong.

Regarding ^{he is French} ~~the para 4~~ Mr. Labathe mentioned that he is the Secretary of the Groupe Interaméricain of R. Soc.

9) We have not received any report as to the Groupe Conference from Baron de Tanne here.

10) The boxes of *Gouvernement* were received ^{and} at once cleared of Customs by a shipping Customs broker and we had the book ~~within 4 days~~ ^{upon arrival} after notification. There was no delay whatsoever on our part. In fact we have not even received one sample copy after the book was published. As stated before in previous minutes the cost is \$200. — 2 amount 2000 books.

11) Hereafter ~~to~~ the Trustees shall all be glad comply with Prof. French's desire to have the copies of our correspondence.

which can be sent by mail

13) Mr. Hartman cannot be dining
ted in our negotiations with Kelly
as long as it concerns the old
law suit. The attorneys keep on
writing to Mr. ~~W. K.~~ but
he does not reply. We are keeping
after the attorneys.

14) Change to the R. M. Bulletin - the
9 1/2 page Bulletin is issued
for Dec and hereafter will be
issued every month. This will
~~be~~ by making the price 50 cents
subscription per year for the
Bulletin some of the branches
are subscribing for their members
representatives.

15) The St-Bart Holman & Co Church
were approached in reference to
a room in the Museum. Thus far

The Church ^{cannot} ~~does not~~ even afford
to buy a portrait of Dr. Norwood
for the Church offered to them.

16) Minutes ^{of the} 6th Meeting of Trustees
of Wausonati K. R. Dist. of Nor.
(9th, 1932) were read.

17) Another subscription from the
public library New Jersey ~~was~~
for the Tibetan Dictionary was
received by the W. Y. Office

18) The Trustees express their ^{heartly} thanks
to Mr. Shubert for the 1000
post cards & the floor of the
Biochemical Laboratory.

19) Wausonati report with attached
memorandum ^{no 3} was submitted
& read

20) Mrs. Lightman reported
to the meeting that she has

visited Mrs. Sutor and she asking her to assist us in our present situation. Mrs. Sutor gave a loan of \$1000. - against a personal ~~guarantee~~ collateral of Mrs. Lichtmann for an indefinite period of time. The Trustees expressed hearty thanks to Mrs. Lichtmann for her efforts & Mrs. Sutor for her help.

21) The Trustees deeply appreciate Mr. March's able & admirable & tactful ~~best~~ handling of the creditors by keeping ~~them~~ their good will in spite of the continuous attempts by Rickaby to incite them.

22) The Trustees were highly gratified by the Supreme Court's decision that all actions of the Manufacturers Trust Co were "irregular & out of order" and thus entitling the Museum

to receive the trust funds by Curry. These funds were not as yet received, as it takes a few days of legal

23) Mme de Vaux's letter to Mr. March was read with ~~Mr.~~ Mr. Guenther's enclosed letter of guarantee. Both letters are attached herewith. The ~~Trustees~~ ~~would~~ Trustees have decided to cable ~~her~~ to Mme de Vaux that the Museum will pay now \$200 & \$200 after the book appears provided we have a personal guarantee from a ~~guarantor~~ ^{guarantor} that the book ^{trails to manuscript} is going to appear 25 days after the receipt of the \$200 as stated in Mr. Guenther's letter.

120 to 147
 24) Paris from 147 - 177 of "Le Heart" were sent - from 147 to 177 were further revised & are going with the next steamer. The paras from 715 to 744

The "Infinitum" were revised as to the request of some de Reusch comparing them against the original "Infinitum" only 18 paras were missing and are being inserted.

25) Miss Grant reported that Boris Grigoriew, whom she met in South America, has come to America and wants to have an exhibition on Corona Mundi. He is coming on Dec. 8th for further discussion with Miss Grant. The Trustees suggest to feel him out.

26) Miss Grant has brought up the question of the proper person to submit the Nobel Prize petition because last year we sent it ourselves and it had no official standing. The Trustees have decided to ask Dr. Mayoffin to send over the petition if he comes under Prof. H. History

Miss Lichtmann wrote in her last letter to Baron Taube to further the cause of the Nobel Prize, saying that he has such fine connections with Scandinavia.

27) The Trustees of Reusch Museum & President of the Hemplayan Reusch Society thank heartily Mr. Shubauer the Honorary Secretary of the H. R. S. for his initiative in ordering the postcards of Prof. de Reusch's portrait by Mr. J. Reusch. All institutions are subscribing to Women's Unity - 100 cards of Hemplayan Reusch Society 100 cards Master Institute (paid) 200 cards Reusch Museum - 200 " Reusch Society - 200 " R. M. Press - 100 " Pan American Woman's Association 100 - Corona Mundi - 100 -

2A) 20 books of Durrani's book were given to Mr. Greentchiff on sale. He finds 40 cents too high and it was agreed that he can charge 25 cents. In order to spread the book it was decided to sell it for 25 cents.

Minutes of 193^d Meeting of Trustees of R.M. held on Dec. 11th 1932 New York.

Present: L.L.H. Chairman, N.S.H., E.J.L., S.L., S.K., M.M.L.

1) Minutes of 192nd Meeting were read & approved.

2) R.M. report n-136 was presented.

3) R.S. report n-59 was presented.

4) President's report of Dec. 10th 1932 was ~~read~~ read.

5) The Trustees express their deep indignation at Kelly's malice as pursued by his destructive purposes by going to India ^{at all opportunities} ~~at all opportunities~~ ^{the Trustees} were shocked to hear that Kelly left ^{uncovered} already in India. I wish to state that the attorneys tricked ^{us} ~~them~~ ^{in this case} from every angle. It seems unbelievable that Harpman had shown "ethics" towards a thief ^{of a standard} ~~of a standard~~ ^{as Kelly} had no ethics towards the President of ~~an~~ a renowned ^{great} institution.

6) Minutes of the 7th Meeting from Newsvati Headquarters were read.

7) ~~In~~ In response to Prof. R's address to Trustees in para 1. We feel confident that all the present difficulties will be turned to great advantages ~~too~~. We also hope for return of prosperity with the change of administration.

8) Re para 4. Miss Grant will investigate at the Customs House as to the custom duties for the book "From Stranghold". The Trustees find the price very reasonable as quoted in minutes of 17, if printed in India. Certainly for this price the book could hardly be printed here.

9) The lectures of Dr. Macgiffin ~~have~~ ^{are} been most successful ~~series of lectures~~, with a very steady & fine, enthusiastic audience and we have not ~~to~~ ^{are} deeply appreciated. We have not ~~decried~~ ^{deducted} their amount.

10) The royalties for Prof. Ruzhick's books are accreted to the fund of Ajin Yaga since Miss Aichtman's arrival in New York Nov. 12th 1931. The Trustees thank heartily Prof. Ruzhick for this generous donation.

11) Mrs. Koch will write to Mr. Bama.

105/45
Shesky in regard to connections with Major Maroff as to the Russian Society.

12) As per suggestion of Prof. Ruzhick, we shall take estimates for the Bulletin on Antique paper.

13) Referring to the half million suit ~~again~~ we ~~regret~~ wish to state that the attorneys do not understand the great responsibility to stand up for ~~culture~~ ^{culture} as true defenders of Culture. It took the Trustees 7 months of endless efforts & persuasion to induce the attorneys to act on. Their only interest is in legal technicalities, but they fail to understand the greatness of the cause.

14) The attitude of the president of the Siberian Association is seen in the letter from Mr. Grebetchkoff attached herewith.

15) Mrs. Lightman will reply as to the Master Institute Budget. Will

16) Minutes of 7th Meeting of the Trustees of Mr. Kim. Res. Joch of R. M. from Waverly Headquarters were read.

17) ~~The plan is~~ The Trustees were delighted to hear that a ~~hydro-^{electric}~~ survey of the site for a ~~hydro-^{electric}~~ plant was made and that hope that means a possibility for the creation of the plant will be found in the near future. We are speaking

18) From ~~7 months~~ April on no interest payment was made either to Prof. Krich or to Mr. Korch. The directors of the various departments of the Museum have not drawn any salary for seven months.

19) The Trustees ^{expressly} wish to thank their deep appreciation to Mrs. Jewkes for her constant help & cooperation.

20) Mrs. Korch read ^{privately to Mr. Korch} a letter & report N121 from ~~to~~ Ch. Korsch and the Trustees were glad to learn of the address of the French Institute at Paris to the French Pact, ^{we express to the} likewise appreciation of the resignation of the International Red Cross of Geneva for the French Pact.

In reference to the Ch. Korsch's reply of the ambassador attitude of the Embassy of in Paris (acting under the instruction of the State Department) Mr. Korch will make a trip to Washington & ascertain about these conditions. As to the Carnegie Peace Foundation's attitude they are resentful of the great universal success of the French Pact & Game of Peace.

21) Due to the new classes of the tapestry weaving they will be inaugurated by the Master Institute 2 classes will be on the 4th floor & our piano studio will be on the 4th floor.

22) Dr. Kettner has subscribed for 100 postcards of Prof. Reisch's portrait by Dr. Irene Star Reisch.

23) ⁴ ~~20~~ books were sent: 13 books to Prof. Reisch, 10 additional books to the 15 to Dr. Kettner. 20 books were sent to Switzerland to Miss Dichtmann's sister for sale.

Mr. R. Slow have printed an add. free of charge on Susserman's book. All some book stores handling books in the language of Susserman's book.

24) A review on the book is given to Dr. R. Slow. Mr. Kersch has discussed the financial situation with the Trustees. The depression has hit hard the entire nation as well the entire world and the justly-tyrannous feel of course the effects.

25) Miss Dichtmann has placed Prof. Reisch's address dedicated to Dr. Kettner in the "Churchman", thru a friend

of Dr. Kettner. The Editor considers it a great honor to print this magnificent address in his magazine. The address will appear in 2, 3 weeks.

26) The Trustees wish to express their profoundest appreciation for a Mme de Reisch for her wonderful cooperation in spite of her state of health in copying the French letters for us. We are deeply aware of her wonderful work especially so because of her sensitive & delicate state of health.

Minutes of 194th Meeting of Trustees of R. M. held on Dec. 18th 1932 N.Y.

Present: L.L.H. Chairman, N.S.H., E.J.L., S.L., F.G., M.M.L.

- 1) President's report of Dec. 17th was read.
- 2) Mr. H.R. Inst. report N-4 of Dec. 15th was presented.
- 3) M. Inst. of R.M. report N-157 was presented.
- 4) Minutes of 193^d Meeting were read & approved.

5) Mrs. Kersch brought up various problems & questions of the Parish Society. For the sake of protecting the parent Society from liabilities & policies, under the contract by its branches the ^{attached} ~~following~~ ^{is suggested} ~~suggestions~~ ^{in profit} ~~are given~~ ^{to approved} ~~are the problems arising~~ ^{& advice} (Mrs. Kersch's suggestions)

- 7) The Trustees wish to state, in reference to the attorney's suggestion to send a letter or call a meeting in reference to the disposing of the raised funds tied up by Curry that they are against any accounts to be given ~~presently~~ ^{in advance} to the Manufacturers Trust Co.
- 8) Minutes of 8th Meeting from the Headquarters at Naggar were read.

9) Re para 3 - Re All payments in reference to the European Center are up to date & nothing is outstanding. Like wise is Baron de Tamber's salary up to date. In reference to Baron de Tamber ~~they are never in arrears, except a couple of times a day if 2 or 2 1/2 weeks~~

In reference to Labarte the incident is closed for us. Mrs. Kersch will write to this effect. Mr. Labarte's opinion did not ~~case~~ influence the Trustees in any way as to the essential character of the European Center

10) 4 copies of Spurr's Box were sent to Prof. Reichen according to his wishes. We are pleased to hear that Prof. Reichen liked the book.

11) Attached herewith is the the data about the Engl. Realm of right. A check from Berlin for \$8.4 was received for the original Realm of right. The price of this original edition is 75 cents.

12) The lawyer in up to para. 14: the lawyers have received constant warning to pursue the lawsuit & utilized all evidences to the utmost.

13) Miss Lichtmann read to me Reichen's thoughts about the great significance of the European Center, expressed by Mme de Reichen in her letter to J. Y. L. Mme de Reichen's considerations & her just appraisal of the significance of the European Center was greatly appreciated by all the Trustees.

The Trustees wish to assure Prof. de Reichen again that they realize the need imperative need of all European activities. All correspondence will be kept up ~~you~~ continuously with the European Center.

14) Minutes of the 8th Meeting of the Trustees of Mr. K. R. Inst. of R. M. from Wurschli Headquarters were read @

15) The Trustees ^{appreciate greatly & thank} Prof. de R. for the hospitality extended to Mr. Webb during his stay at Naggar Kulu @

~~15)~~ 1) (X) (X)

Following receipt from Prof. de R. 1) ~~The cable~~ was read: ~~New York~~ Dec. 18. 1932. Botanist stated is sent by Michigan University to collect specimen Central

Asia please investigate because
contradicts your references Michi-
gan statement also cable whether
old credentials surrendered stop
meantime botanist stay valley
with former retainer stop if
childrens trip necessary Nettie

~~The Trustees are~~ deeply concerned and
should also go

Roerich
The following cable was received from
New York Dec. 18. Col. Mahon
in Dec. 18th.

Referring your cable Keely's
breach release noted please
inform us further legal steps
taken America

Mahon.

The Trustees are deeply concerned
and distressed about Keely's out-
rageous attitude proceeding and are
taking up the matter with the Michi-
gan University as to whether it is
true that ~~Dr~~ Keely was sent by this
organization to Kulu Valley. On pre-
vious occasions we recall he
also ^{claimed} to be a present University
~~which was~~ however Michigan
University did not show any co-
operation in our investigation.
Dr Parlett must be in some way con-
nected with the Keely matter in a
very strange way. A sharp investi-
gation will be made at once. Dr
Mason and Dr Merrill will be appro-
ached they shall write to the President
of Michigan University

16) The letter of appeal as prepared
by Dr Fisher was approved
by the Trustees. It will be

distributed & sent out to friends
of the Institution

- 17) All paragraphs missing between
683 & 744 of "Infinity" were inserted
Paras from 197 to 202 of the "Heart"
were sent to Mr de Reiche

Minutes of 195th Meeting of Trustees
of R. M. held on Dec. 25th 1932.

Present. L. L. H. Chairman, N. S. H.,
E. J. L., S. L., F. R. G., M. M. L.

1) R. M. report No 137 was presented

2) Mr. Kim. Res. Inst. of R. M. report
No. 5 was presented.

3) Mrs. Koch discussed some problems of
the Reich Society which were emb-
ded in minutes No 194. Mrs. Koch
also also the important points

from Dr. Chiklauer's report No of
Dec 8th. The Trustees appreciate
greatly the dignified form of the
Reich Foundation pay statement.
It is gratifying to see the development
of the Reich Foundation.

4) Mrs. Lightman ^{spoke of the general situation} discussed the problems
of the Master Institute. Being that be-
cause of the general ^{financial} depression the M. I.
has lost some students. Mrs. Lightman
brought up the question of an advertis-
ment. It was agreed upon to place
two consecutive advertisements in the
Times on Sundays. It was also
suggested to approach several Sunday schools
in the vicinity, Parent Associations
& other organizations ~~which could bring~~
~~an increase in the number of students.~~
It was suggested to invite them to the events
of the Master Institute thus promote the
possibilities of enrollment.

5) President's report of Dec. 24th was read

6) Mr. Koch brought up the question of reorganization plan suggested by Mr. Ernst. Mr. Koch will further work on this plan & submit it to the Trustees.

7) The Trustees were ~~not~~ amazed at the decision of the Appellate Division which is hostile & based on ignorance of true facts, for it is recognized even by the opposition because the that the Boerich Museum is ^{the most useful & greatest benefit to Bondholders}

8) Jan. 3rd World League of Culture; Jan. 4th Friendship Board Com. ~~Dec. 30th Women's Unity meeting~~

It was decided to hold a ~~new~~ Dinner at Place Committee meeting on the Jan. 11th Foreign Exhibitions - Jan 13th Friend-Ship Dinner Jan. 17th; Cancer Committee Jan. 24th

Dec. 30th Women's Unity meeting

Meeting continued on Dec. 26th 1932

9) ~~The following cable was received~~
The Trustees have discussed Prof de Boerich's suggestion have best to approach Schuman than Mrs. Jutra.

10) The Trustees were deeply indignant at the reply from the President of Michigan University ^{Boerich's} will pursue vigorously the ~~Boerich's~~ affair.

~~The~~ Minutes of the 9th meeting of the Trustees ~~was~~ were read

insert this in N. 27.

(X) A possibility is pending of some financial assistance pending for the Ferry Stronghold. If this possibility does not turn out other publishers will be approached.

12) ~~The Trustees will investigate who~~
~~The~~ The relationship with Prof. Boerich was not so pleasant in the past

Further inquiry will be made & communicated to Prof. Reisch.

13) The Trustees have greatly appreciated Prof. Reisch's reply to Barbot de Tancle to No 5 in regard to

14) The copies of Rigden Gyalpo will be ordered to be printed on yellow silk & 3 copies will be sent to Prof. Reisch as requested.

15) Mrs. Grant will send the requested prints of Madame Labrous, Madame d'Arc & Pantheism to the Editor.

16) The books of Madame Labrous are thus far not paid for. They are ~~not~~ being held by the printer & until we will print it.

17) The Trustees have decided to print the speeches of the Decade Celebration as suggested by Prof. Reisch.

The set up was not paid for but the type is held by the printer for our publication.

18) We wish to assure Prof. de Reisch of ^{that} all constant efforts have been made and are made to ~~in~~ both officially & specially to impress them with the cultural significance of the works however it is difficult to take them out of their local trend of mind.

19) Malcolm Vaughan & John O'Hara Cosgrave have been informed of all developments & a most friendly contact kept up with them.

20) The Trustees have deeply appreciated Prof. de Reisch's address to the Trustees which came with minutes No 9.

21) Minutes of the 9th Meeting of the Trustees of Kim. Res. Draft from Wamsvati Headquarters were read.

22) Mrs. Lichtman announced some details from a letter received from by her from Dr. Roerich.

23) Miss Lichtman announced that she has received a ~~report~~ report from Dr. Hoffman sent by him to Mr. Fels endorsing our plan of Cancer Research in the Himalayas. Miss Lichtman ^{will} follow up this matter.

24) The Trustees appreciated ^{greatly} the album with ^{postcards of} Prof. de Roerich's ^{paintings} ~~postcards~~ made up by Esther Lichtman as a sample. Miss E. Lichtman is donating this album to Woman's Unity. Other albums will be made up according to this sample.

25) The Trustees have deeply appreciated Prof. de Roerich's letter to Mrs. Johnson. ~~The letter~~ which came with Minute N-9. The letter was at once translated, copies given to the Trustees & Office of World League of Culture.

26) Estimates will be taken from various printers for the book of Surveys.

27) Miss Grant brought up the following points: 1) She has had a conference with Mr. Godkin formerly of the Oxford Press who has some possibilities of financial help for the Roerich Museum Press.

2) The question of founding a Magazine to be supported by a Literary Guild of the U. S. Press as well as subscriptions and advertisements.

28) Mr. Norch has brought to the Trustees knowledge the letter from Ishimaru where he writes about the possibility of a Museum branch in Kyoto & further cooperation.

29) Miss Grant has ~~also~~ reported the news from Chile, Ecuador & Bolivia from Cyprus if these letters will be sent to Prof. Roerich.

30) Passes from 203 to 221⁴ of the book
"Heart" ~~was sent~~ will be sent with
this mail

31) As suggested by Prof Rosen A letter
was sent to Mr. Ormanshinsky
in reference to a Bulgarian Request
Bosnian Society giving him the
name of Blago Medaf Haroff.
Mrs. Hatch ~~responds~~ ^{repts} no response
to all her letters to Harbin

32)

Minutes of 196th Meeting of the Trustees
held on Jan. 1st 1933^d New-York, N.Y.

Present: L. L. H. Chairman, N. S. H., E. J. L.,
S. L., F. R. G., M. M. L.

- 1) Minutes of 194 & 195 Meetings were
presented & approved.
- 2) President's report of Dec. 31st 1932
was read & approved.
- 3) Master Institute report N=158 was
presented
- 4) Minutes of the 10th Meeting of the
Trustees of Parish Ill. from
the Urusvati Headquarters were
read.
- 5) The campaign possibilities were discussed
The letter of Board's letter is being sent
out as an appeal & is being distri-
buted for amongst friends.

~~Propa~~
 6) A discussion was held as to who shall send the Nobel petition in Europe & America. Dr. Borel of Geneva, ~~and~~ Duke de Broglie were proposed for Europe. Dr. Randall was proposed for America.

13) Minutes of the 10th Meeting of the Trustees of Mr. Kim. Res. from Wausonati Headquarters were read.

11) ~~Miss Bathrick~~ ~~was discharged~~ at the time it was proposed to discharge Miss Pruetnick. This measure was taken because it was felt all sacrifices were necessary. Miss Grant now feels that it is imperative to have Miss Bathrick 2 half days a week at a rate of \$3.-half a day. Mr. Korch wishes to add Mr. Korch wishes to say that he will always approve of any worker who will do constructive work, but he ~~is~~ Mr. Korch wishes to add that he will always approve of any worker who would do constructive work to develop the Press in new fields.

14) ~~All~~ The Trustees are deeply indignant at ~~it~~ and aggravated beyond words at the whole Kely procedure. Mr. Korch has given the details in his report about the ~~matter~~ ^{Kely} matter. We will not entrust ~~Mr. Kramer~~ Kramer with the case anymore because he has handled the case in an ~~most~~ ~~inadequate~~ inadequate way. The Trustees are of course ~~aware~~ aware of the sad fact that by ~~accepting~~ ^{accepting} Hartman for ^{Bridgman's} ~~Common~~ ^{Common} which was ~~extremely~~ ^{extremely} demanded by the other attorneys at a critical moment and because of Hartman's ^{duty} ~~to~~ ^{to} legal ethics such ~~and~~ ^{and} ~~outcome~~ ^{outcome} and difficult untold difficulties have resulted. The only hope is that ~~the~~ ~~now~~ ~~being~~ that the ~~complete~~ ~~release~~ ~~from~~ ~~his~~ ~~broken~~ ~~we~~ ~~will~~ ~~strike~~ ~~at~~ ~~him~~ ~~again~~. We believe we have full right to set aside

the release and shall proceed with
legal persecution of Kelly.

Minutes of 197th Meeting of Trustees
of R. M. held on Jan. 8th 1933 New York

Present: L. L. H. Chairman, N. S. H.,
E. J. L., F. R. G., M. M. L.

- 1) President's Report of Jan. 7th was read.
- 2) R. M. Report No. 138 was presented
- 3) Mr. Him. Res. Inst. Report No. 6 was presented
- 4) R. M. Press Report of Dec. 31st was presented
- 5) The letter from the President of Michigan University was read & clearly noted that Kelly's ~~travels~~ trip to India was financed not by the State funds but by

private donations. The cable to Prof. & Mme de Rerich to this effect was approved by the Trustees.

- 6) Mrs. Hark announced a course on the analysis of the Wagner Operas to be given under the auspices of the Rerich Society by Mr. Schorr, which was approved
- 7) Mrs. Hark announced that Capt. Noel will give another group lecture with cinema in the R. M. Hall with free admission to the members of M. S.
- 8) G. J. L. brought up the ^{question of} printing of Duseman's book in India. Duseman would be delighted to have the book printed ^{there}. Information will be gathered as to the customs duty on the book.
- 9) Miss Grant reported a letter she received from Mr. Tupper in reference to the World League of Press. Miss Grant reports on it in detail in Rerich

^{Pres}
Museum Report.

- 10) Mrs. Korsh announced she received a letter from the Washington French Society whereby they are expecting Miss S. J. Lichtman to lecture on the Jan. 20th and
- 11) Mr. Korsh announced the forthcoming meeting of the attorneys in reference to the reorganization plan & discussed the various points of ^{the plan} ~~the plan~~ were discussed
- 12) Minutes of the 11th Meeting of Trustees at Amersbach were read
(Mr. Korsh's notes)
(Mr. Lichtman's notes)
- 13) Mrs. Korsh reported that Mrs. Katharine Weil pres. of the French R. Assoc. stated that their society wishes to ~~ask~~ ask the cooperation of the European Center to get a French award for Sen. Slabo because of his years of

of service to Fr. art in America. Mrs Weil intends to write directly to the European Center asking their help. Mrs Korsh will write to the European Center in a general way telling about Mrs Weil's project. We will inform Mr. Chelover that this project should not take precedence over any more immediate matters.

14) A duplicate copy of "Infinity" from para 816 to the end was sent as well as all revised ~~for~~ missing pages of "Microscopy" mentioned by Mrs de Ralrich.

15) On Jan. 6th our attorney has filed a Counter Claim for \$1,000,000 against Harout. Trust Co & Haykard CE for the damages of the legal receivership

16) The Trustees who drew back ~~allowances~~ allowances from Apr. 1931 to Nov. 1931 have donated these sums for the upkeep of

Minutes of the European Center

- 17) Minutes of 11 from Brussels Headquarters were read
- 18) Miss B. J. Lightman read Dr. George Rouch's letter of Dec. 12th to her
- 19) The Biochemical Campaign Com meeting is called for Jan. 11th
- 20) Miss Lightman read her letter to Dr. Hoffman & Dr. Hoffman's letter to her of Dec. 2nd Jan.

Minutes of 198th Meeting of Trustees of R. M. held on Jan. 15th 1933 New York

Present: L. L. H. Chairman, N. S. H., E. J. L., S. L., F. R. G., M. M. L.

- 1) Minutes of 197th Meeting were presented & signed by the Trustees & sent during the week to Brussels Headquarters.
- 2) President's Report of Jan 14th was read ~~XXXXXXXXXX~~
- 3) Master Institute of R. M. Report N= 159 was presented ~~XXXXXXXXXX~~
- 4) Mr. Res. Inst. Report N= 7 was presented ~~XXXXXXXXXX~~
- 5) The letter to Mr. Burke in Michigan in response to Kelly's fraudulent conduct in breaking the agreement was discussed at length. It was decided to send the letter next which

will be attached to this week's minutes

6) Mr. Koch brought up that 15 francs ~~brought up the~~ are asking for \$5 to \$10. - request of ~~set~~ their rental. It was decided to keep up the rentals at the present rate as much as possible

7) The attached cable to Dr. Chiklauer re. Nobel Prize was read & approved.

8) The attached cables were ^{sent to the King & Queen of Bulgaria} sent to the King & Queen of Bulgaria

9) Attached herewith ^{are} cables to Prof. Nikola Panch from the Bulgarian Minister.

10) Mr. Koch read a letter from Mr. Samuel Lewis, who wishes to give lectures under the Pencil Society.

11) Miss Lichtman brought up the question

The Trustees will subsidize the expenses ^{105/60}

of sending the remaining sum of \$6500. to Dr. Chiklauer for "Infinity". The draft is being sent over to Dr. Chiklauer. Some funds were also requested by Dr. Chiklauer for postage to send out the ^{issues} books when

12) The question of the French edition of "Trails to Unconquered Asia" was discussed

13) Miss Grant moves that a vote of thanks be given to the Trustees in Naggar for their thoughtfulness in sending a copy of the minutes to each of the Trustees in New York, which has proved of invaluable ~~step~~ help.

14) Minutes of 12th meeting from the Trustees ~~of~~ from New York were read.

15) Pages from 276 to 393 ~~were~~ of the "Heart" were in original were received. See Endpapers.

16) ^{page 14} Mr. Constable bought N. Parkoff's book.

17) Re. Prof. inquiry of the "American Buddhist" there are ~~more than 100~~ many copies - ~~over 100 copies~~.

~~18) Mr. Kim Res. Draft~~

18) Minutes of 12th Meeting of the Trustees of Mr. Kim Res. Draft from Messrs. Keats' quarters were read.

19) (X)

20) G² de P's letter to E. J. L. of Dec. 22nd was read and the two developments announced by Bide Tanka noted with gratification.

21) Baron de Tanka's letter to E. J. L. of Dec. 29th was read.

22) (++) (Miss Grant's notes.) Mrs. Koch wishes to state that

← does not seem equitable

~~probably~~ the conditions mentioned by Miss Grant that half of the salesman's salary is to be paid by the Press & half by another book publisher undoubtedly the other publisher has ~~no~~ many no books. Under the conditions submitted by Miss Grant the Press is to pay 1/2 of his salary & 1/2 of travelling expenses. Not being informed of how much stock he takes along and what is the form he represents Mrs. Koch feels also that at the present time \$80. — should not be invested in an experiment when times are so difficult. And inasmuch as our books are not new compared to other booksellers and are not numerous, Mrs. Koch proposes a salesman to be found on a purely commission basis without any investment of salary or commission.

Miss Grant wishes to state that the basis of payment is that we are to get half his time & attention so that the amount of time stock would be negligible. Miss Grant has tried for several years to find a salesman ~~on~~ on commission basis without any success. The last time this is the first reasonable order she has had she submitted it to the Trustees but in view of the expression that it is too great an expense ^{at this stage in the business} to draw it.

Mr. Koch feels that the terms submitted are exceedingly high since there are thousands of salesmen who are unemployed and would give their complete time for \$25. - Miss Grant states that she could not find any other salesman approaching this offer.

Present: d. L. D. M. S. H. + R. G. 8. J. L. S. L. Minutes of 199th meeting of Trustees Jan. 29th 105/62

1) Minutes of 198th Meeting were presented & signed by two Trustees & sent during the week & sent to Harrold Headquarters.

2) President's Report of Jan. 21st was read & approved.

3) Harrold Himalayan Research Institute Report No 8 was read.

4) The letter from Mr. Barre to S. J. L. was read.

5) A photostat of the letter in reference to the Chile affair is herewith attached. This document indicates how unfounded & vicious this slander was.

6) ~~The~~ An excerpt from a letter received by Miss Grant from Argentina is herewith attached.
pertaining to "Realm of Light"

- 7) R. N. Puro report from Jan^{1st} to Jan^{13th} was presented
- 8) Mr. Korch proposed a plan by which one full guard can be eliminated and the work more concentrated & divided with the assistance of emergency workers.
- 9) The Trustees greatly rejoiced at Mrs. Van Loos's article on "Foundation Research" in "Clarte"
- 10) Minutes No. 13 from the Trustees of ^{from} Muskrat Headquarters were read
- 11) Minutes No. 13 from Muskrat, Kinnaird Research Institute were read.
- 12) Miss Lichtmann's letter to Mr. Allen Lee was read

3 reports

- 13) Mrs. Korch read a letter from Dr. Ch. Kowalski from ~~Jan 126~~ 126 to 129. — The Trustees were gratified to hear of all the ^{cultural} developments in Europe.
- 14) The 50 books of Guernsey sent to Mr. Petkovic in Yugoslavia came back

2 books given to Mrs. Kolokolnikoff, 2 books to Mrs. Yasi Keff. 105/63

- 15) ¹⁵⁾ The books were sent on consignment: 10 books to Mrs. Marenfeldt Washington
- 16) Dr. Magoffin is sending another protest letter to the President. ^{Kelly} The case is followed up
- 17) Mr. Korch has given to the Trustees ² the briefs: one concerning counter-claim and one brief for the Appellate Court. Petkovic's reply was also handed to the Trustees.
- 18) The Trustees acknowledge with profound appreciation Prof. de Reruch's letter of Dec. 24th

{ Tchegoleff, President Young Chrussetka
 c/o The Young men's Christian Association
 N.M.A. Harbin Manchuria
 Mr. ^{Chairman} Acharin - Grisoff
 Mr. G. Granin, Secretary

Realm of Light, edition Alata

Dec. 18th received from Albert Einstein - 40 books

Distribution of these 40 books:

- 17 books given to Mr. Koch's office to be sent to addresses given by Prof. Reich
- 10 books to Pordelky Paris on Cross Street
- 5 books to Riga, Dr. Durkin
- 1 book to Alexis - Achair Grisoff
- 1 book to V. K. Reich
- 2 books to Ch. Mayer
- 1 to Dr. Alexander Assejer
Profesorska Kolonija
Beograd

Stojana Korakovica ul. № 22
Belgrade, Yugoslav Empire

Yoni
Trusts Jalny